### Walton Academy, Inc.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020



#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	PAGE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1-3
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	4-9
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-Wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	10
Statement of Activities	11
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds	12
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position	13
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds	14
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	15
Notes to Financial Statements	16-39
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of School's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability Florida Retirement System and Health Insurance Subsidy	41
Schedule of School's Pension Contributions Florida Retirement System and Health Insurance Subsidy	42
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – General Fund	43
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – Capital Outlay Fund	44

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)**

Notes to Required Supplemental Information	45
COMPLIANCE INFORMATION	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	47-48
Management Letter	49-50
Management Findings, Recommendations and Responses	51



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors Walton Academy, Inc. DeFuniak Springs, Florida

#### **Report of the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Walton Academy, Inc. (the "School"), a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Opinions**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note A-1, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present only the financial position of the School at June 30, 2020, and the results of its operations for the year then ended, and is not intended to be a complete presentation of the District.

#### **Other Matters**

#### Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 14, 2020, on our consideration of the School's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 14, 2020

McDoncyh (PA Solutions, PA

Melbourne, Florida

#### **Management's Discussion and Analysis**

As management of Walton Academy (the "School"), we offer readers of the School's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview and analysis of the School's financial activities, (c) identify changes in the School's financial position, (d) identify material deviations from the approved budget, and (e) highlight significant issues in individual funds.

Since the information contained in the Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") is intended to highlight significant transactions, events, and conditions, it should be considered in conjunction with the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

#### **Financial Highlights**

- The assets of the School exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by \$ 91,575 .
- The School's total net position decreased by \$ 138,972.
- As of the close of the current fiscal year, the School's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of \$ 345,582.
- At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was \$202,581.

#### **Overview of the Financial Statements**

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School's financial statements. The School's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial statements.

#### The School as a Whole

The information in the government-wide financial statements includes all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting (and reports depreciation on capital assets), which is similar to the basis of accounting used by most private-sector companies.

The change in net position (liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets plus deferred outflows of resource) over time is one indicator of whether the School's financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one needs to consider other nonfinancial factors in making an assessment of the School's health, such as changes in enrollment, changes in the State's funding of educational costs, changes in the economy, etc., to assess the overall health of the School.

**Government-wide financial statements.** The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the School's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the School's assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the School's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected funding and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the School that are principally supported by District, State, and Federal funding (governmental activities). Basic instruction, exceptional instruction, and school administration are examples of the School's governmental activities.

The government-wide financial statements include only the School itself, which is a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida. The Walton County School District, Florida includes the operation of the School in their operations.

The governmental-wide financial statements can be found listed on the table of contents of this report.

**Fund financial statements.** A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The School, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the operations of the School are presented in governmental and fiduciary funds.

**Governmental funds.** Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The School maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The general fund and capital outlay fund are considered to be major funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found listed on the table of contents in this report.

The School adopts an annual appropriated budget A budgetary comparison statement has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget and can be found listed in the table of contents in this report.

**Notes to financial statements.** The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found listed on the table of contents in this report.

#### **Government-Wide Financial Analysis**

As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a School's financial position. In the case of the School, liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets plus deferred outflows of resource by \$ 91,575 and \$ 47,398 as of ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

A large portion of the School's net position is the unrestricted portion. Another portion of the net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., buildings, improvements other than buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment). The School uses these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The net investment in capital assets totaled \$242,856 at June 30, 2020.

Comparison of the condensed statement of net position and the statement of activities are provided below.

	2020	2019	Variance		
ASSETS					
Current assets	\$ 575,695	\$ 369,875	\$ 205,820		
Capital assets - net	242,856	253,122	(10,266)		
Total assets	818,551	622,997	195,554		
Deferred outflows of resources	430,662	482,497	(51,835)		
LIABILITIES					
Current liabilities	230,113	22,935	207,178		
Noncurrent liabilities	1,024,125	903,612	120,513		
Total liabilities	1,254,238	926,547	327,691		
Deferred inflows of resources	86,550	131,549	(44,999)		
NET POSITION					
Net investment in capital assets	242,856 253,122		(10,266)		
Restricted	143,001	152,092	(9,091)		
Unrestricted	(477,432)	(357,817)	(119,615)		
Total net position	\$ (91,575)	\$ 47,397	\$ (138,972)		

The increase in current assets is mostly related to cash proceeds from the paycheck protection program (PPP) loan established in response to COVID-9 pandemic. The changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources are due to the changes in assumptions, experience, investments, employer specific changes and subsequent contributions to the measurement date. The increase in current liabilities is mainly due to a non-exchange financial guarantee (PPP loan) executed to protect salaries during the COVID-19 pandemic. The increase in noncurrent liabilities is due to the increase in pension liabilities. Unrestricted net position decreased mainly due to the increase in pension expense.

Changes in the School's revenues were as follows:

2020			2019		Variance
\$	124,710	\$	91,934	\$	32,776
	100,915		107,785		(6,870)
1,339,931			1,504,489		(164,558)
\$	1,565,556	\$	1,704,208	\$	(138,652)
		\$ 124,710 100,915	\$ 124,710 \$ 100,915 1,339,931	\$ 124,710 \$ 91,934 100,915 107,785 1,339,931 1,504,489	\$ 124,710 \$ 91,934 \$ 100,915 107,785 1,339,931 1,504,489

The changes in revenues is due to the decrease in the School's enrollment and the decrease in capital outlay counterbalanced by increases in best and brightest awards and safety and security funds.

Changes in the School's expenses were as follows:

		2020		2019		Variance
Basic instruction	\$	759,569	\$	860,881	\$	(101,312)
Psychological services		82,181		52,496		29,685
Staff development		82		2,514		(2,432)
Board		14,279		11,350		2,929
General administration	457			-		457
School administration	317,965		317,965 326,709			(8,744)
Facilities		115,849		136,944		(21,095)
Fiscal services		146,964		148,497		(1,533)
Food services		-		24		(24)
Staff services		147,671 146,328			1,343	
Transportation	7,929 7,084			845		
Operation of plant		99,554		98,783		771
Maintenance of plant		45		-		45
Administrative technology	11,983		11,983 15,898			(3,915)
	\$	1,704,528	\$	1,807,508	\$	(102,980)

The decrease in basic instruction is mostly due to decreases in salaries corresponding to student enrollments and uniforms for students. Psychological services increased largely in relationship to salaries for counseling. School administration decreased mainly due to administrators' salaries and School Resource Officer's fees. Facilities decreased primarily due to repairs and maintenance of the School.

#### Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As previously noted, the School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

**Governmental funds.** The focus of the School's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the School's financing requirements. In particular, the unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the School's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of \$ 345,582. Of those funds, the general fund is the chief operating funds which included a total amount \$202,581, of unassigned fund balance, which is the amount available for spending at the School's discretion.

#### **General Fund Budgetary Highlights**

Budgeted revenues exceeded actual revenues by \$2,866 while budgeted expenditures exceeded actual expenditures by \$38,869.

The budgetary information can be found listed on the table of contents in this report.

#### **Capital Asset and Debt Administration**

**Capital Assets.** The School's net investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of June 30, 2020 amounts to \$242,856 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, and furniture, fixtures and equipment.

**Debt and Long-Term Liabilities.** At the end of the current fiscal year, the School had an outstanding net pension liability of \$ 1,024,125 for employee's pension in the Florida Retirement System.

#### **Economic Factor**

A majority of the School's funding is determined by the number of enrolled students. The School is forecasting enrollment to be 160 students for the 2020/2021 school year comparative to the 159 enrolled in 2019/2020. In addition, the School is estimating a potential decline in referrals provided by the district between 10% to 11% related to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

#### **Request for Information**

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School's finances for all those with an interest in the School's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Walton Academy, 389 Dorsey Avenue, DeFuniak Springs, FL 32435.

## Walton Academy, Inc. STATEMENT OF NET POSITION June 30, 2020

#### **ASSETS**

CURRENT ASSETS	
Cash	\$ 569,499
Accounts receivable	175
Deposits	6,021
Total current assets	575,695
CAPITAL ASSETS	
Capital assets not being depreciated:	
Land	13,413
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:	
Buildings	164,199
Improvements other than buildings	52,417
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	1,627
Vehicles	11,200
Total capital assets,net	 242,856
Total assets	 818,551
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred assumptions, contributions, and experience	430,662
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION	
LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable	10,194
Accrued payroll liabilities	3,459
Nonexchange financial guarantee	216,460
Noncurrent liabilities:	
Net Pension Liability	 1,024,125
Total liabilities	 1,254,238
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred change in proportion (NPL), contributions,	
experience, and investments	86,550
NET POSITION	
Net investment in capital assets	242,856
Restricted for:	
Capital outlay	143,001
Unrestricted	(477,432)
Total net position	\$ (91,575)

# Walton Academy, Inc. STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the year ended June 30, 2020

Functions/Programs	E	xpenses	Charg Serv		Gr	perating ants and tributions	·	and ortibutions	Re <sup>s</sup> Cha	t (Expense) venue and nges in Net Position
Governmental Activities:										
Basic instruction	\$	759,569	\$	-	\$	124,710	\$	-	\$	(634,859)
Psychological services		82,181		-		-		-		(82,181)
Staff development		82		-		-		-		(82)
Board		14,279		-		-		-		(14,279)
General administration		457								(457)
School administration		317,965		-		-		-		(317,965)
Facilities		115,849		-		-		100,915		(14,934)
Fiscal services		146,964		-	-			-		(146,964)
Staff services		147,671		-	-			-		(147,671)
Transportation		7,929		-	-			-		(7,929)
Operation of plant		99,554		-	-			-		(99,554)
Maintenance of plant		45		-		-		-		(45)
Administrative technology		11,983				-		-		(11,983)
Total governmental activities	\$	1,704,528	\$		\$	124,710	\$	100,915		(1,478,903)
					Genera	al revenues:				
					Flori	da education	finan	ce program		1,319,974
			Other revenues					19,957		
					Total	general rev	enues			1,339,931
			Change in net position						(138,972)	
					Net po	sition at July	1, 201	9		47,397
			Net position at June 30, 2020			\$	(91,575)			

# Walton Academy, Inc. BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS June 30, 2020

	Ger	neral Fund	Сар	ital Outlay Fund	Goverr	her nmental nds	Total ernmental Funds
ASSETS							
Cash	\$	569,499	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 569,499
Accounts receivable		175		-		-	175
Deposits		6,021		-		-	6,021
Due from other funds				143,001			 143,001
Total assets	\$	575,695	\$	143,001	\$		\$ 718,696
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES							
LIABILITIES							
Accounts payable	\$	10,194	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 10,194
Accrued payroll liabilities		3,459		-		-	3,459
Nonexchange financial guarantee		216,460		-		-	216,460
Due to other funds		143,001					 143,001
Total liabilities		373,114					 373,114
FUND BALANCES							
Restricted for capital outlay		-		143,001		-	143,001
Unassigned		202,581		-		-	 202,581
Total fund balances		202,581		143,001			 345,582
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$	575,695	\$	143,001	\$	-	\$ 718,696

# Walton Academy, Inc. RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION For the year ended June 30, 2020

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds		\$ 345,582
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. Those assets consist of:  Capital assets	\$ 759,151	242.056
Accumulated depreciation	 (516,295)	242,856
Deferred outflows and inflows or resources related to pensions are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds		
Deferred outflows of resources	\$ 430,662	
Deferred inflows of resources	 (86,550)	344,112
Noncurrent liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the		
funds.		(1,024,125)
Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities		\$ (91,575)

# Walton Academy, Inc. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS For the year ended June 30, 2020

		Capital Outlay	Other Governmental	Total Governmental	
	General Fund	Fund	Funds	Funds	
Revenues					
Federal passed through state and local	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 104,428	\$ 104,428	
State passed through local school district	1,340,256	100,915	· 101,120	1,441,171	
Other revenues	19,957	-	-	19,957	
Total revenues	1,360,213	100,915	104,428	1,565,556	
Expenditures					
Current:					
Basic instruction	498,057	-	104,428	602,485	
Psychological services	87,716	-	-	87,716	
Staff development	82	-	-	82	
Board of directors	14,279	-	-	14,279	
General administration	457	-	-	457	
School administration	339,954	-	-	339,954	
Facilities	-	86,655	-	86,655	
Fiscal services	146,964	-	-	146,964	
Staff services	147,671	-	-	147,671	
Transportation	5,129	-	-	5,129	
Operation of plant	100,143	-	-	100,143	
Maintenance of plant	45	-	-	45	
Administrative technology	11,983	-	-	11,983	
Capital outlay		23,351		23,351	
	1,352,480	110,006	104,428	1,566,914	
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over					
(under) expenditures	7,733	(9,091)	-	(1,358)	
Fund balances at July 1, 2019	194,848	152,092		346,940	
Fund balances at June 30, 2020	\$ 202,581	\$ 143,001	\$ -	\$ 345,582	

#### Walton Academy, Inc.

### RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES –GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds		\$ (1,358)
The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities is different because:		
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This and the net effect of various other transactions involving capital assets increased net position.  Capital outlay	\$ 25,531	
Provision for depreciation	 (35,796)	(10,265)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.		
Decrease in pension expense		(127,349)
Change in Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities		\$ (138,972)

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### 1. Reporting entity

Walton Academy (the "School"), is a not-for-profit corporation organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, the Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation Act, and Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. The Charter School provides educational services to students at-risk in grades six through twelve. The governing body of the School is the Board of Directors, which is composed of four members.

The general operating authority of the School is contained in Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. The school operates under a charter of the sponsoring school district, which is the Walton County School District, Florida (the "District). The current charter is effective until June 30, 2020, and may be renewed in increments of five years by mutual agreement between the School and the District. At the end of the term of the charter, the District may choose not to renew the charter under grounds specified in the charter in which case the District is required to notify the School in writing at least 90 days prior to the charter's expiration. During the term of the charter, the District may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown. The School is considered a component unit of the Walton County District School Board. The financial information presented is that of Walton Academy only.

#### 2. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the School. As part of the consolidation process, all interfund activities are eliminated from these statements. Both statements report only governmental activities as the School does not engage in any business type activities.

Net position, the difference between assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, as presented in the statement of net position, are subdivided into three categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints are imposed on the use of the amounts either externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, or enabling legislation.

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 2. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

The statement of activities presents a comparison between the direct and indirect expenses of a given function and its program revenues, and displays the extent to which each function contributes to the change in net position for the fiscal year. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable to a specific function.

Indirect expenses are costs the School has allocated to various functions. Program revenues consist of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions.

Charges for services refer to amounts received from those who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment. Grants and contributions consist of revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Revenues not classified as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements report detailed information about the School's governmental funds. The focus of the governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. Therefore, major funds are reported in separate columns on the fund financial statements. Two of the School's funds were deemed major funds. A reconciliation is provided that converts the results of governmental fund accounting to the government-wide presentation.

#### 3. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred.

All governmental fund financial statements are reported using a current financial resources measurement focus on a modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues, except for certain grant revenues, are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Available means collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the School considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the current fiscal period.

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### 3. <u>Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation</u> (continued)

When grant terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for determining eligibility for federal, state, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as expenditures only when payment is due.

The School's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Accordingly, the financial statements are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is an accounting entity having a self-balancing set of accounts for recording assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, expenditures and other financing sources and uses.

Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The School reports the following major governmental funds:

<u>General Fund</u> – is the general operating fund of the School and is used to account for all resources not required to be accounted for in another fund.

<u>Capital Outlay Fund</u> – in accordance with guidelines established by the Walton County District School Board. This fund accounts for all resources for the leasing or acquisition of capital facilities by the School to the extent funded by capital outlay funds.

#### 4. <u>Cash</u>

Cash consists of cash on hand at the School and checking accounts held at a financial institution. The School has no cash equivalents.

#### 5. Receivables

The School's receivables consist of receivables from service programs and amounts due from other agencies. After reviewing the individual account balances, the School's management has determined, based on prior experience, that 100% of receivables are fully collectible. Therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided.

#### NOTE A – SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 6. <u>Interfund activity</u>

Activity between the funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as due to/from other funds. At the end of the year, the general owed the capital outlay fund \$143,001.

#### 7. Capital assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental columns on the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the School as assets with an initial individual cost of more than \$1,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market values at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the School are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

	Estimated Useful
Asset Class	Lives
Buildings	9
Improvements other than buildings	5-15
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	5-9
Motor Vehicle	5

#### NOTE A – SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 8. Revenue sources

Revenues for current operations are received primarily from the State of Florida passed through the District pursuant to the funding provisions included in the School's charter. In accordance with the funding provisions of the charter and Section 1002.33(17), Florida Statutes, the School reports the number of full-time equivalent ("FTE") students and related data to the District.

Under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes the District reports the number of FTE students and related data to the Florida Department of Education ("FDOE") for funding through the Florida Education Finance Program. Funding for the School is adjusted during the year to reflect the revised calculations by the FDOE under the Florida Education Finance Program and actual weighted FTE students reported by the School during designated FTE student survey periods.

The School receives federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs. This assistance is generally based on applications submitted to and approved by various granting agencies. These federal awards may have requirements whereby the issuance of grant funds is withheld until qualifying eligible expenditures are incurred. Revenues for these awards are recognized only to the extent that eligible expenditures have been incurred.

Additionally, other revenues may be derived from various fundraising activities and certain other programs.

#### 9. Use of estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may differ from estimated amounts.

#### NOTE A – SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 10. Income taxes

The School is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable state law.

The School recognizes the financial statement effects from a tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

Examples of tax positions include the tax-exempt status of the School and various positions related to the potential sources of unrelated business taxable income. The assessment of the technical merits of a tax position is a matter of judgment. The School believes that all of its tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. The School files Form 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction.

#### 11. Fund balance classifications

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the School is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance – amounts that are not spendable (such as inventory and prepaid expenses) or are required to be maintained intact.

<u>Restricted fund balance</u> – amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

<u>Committed fund balance</u> – amounts constrained to specific purposes by the School itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., Board of Directors). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the School takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 11. Fund balance classifications (continued)

<u>Assigned fund balance</u> – amounts the School intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the Board of Directors or by an official or body to which the Board of Directors delegates the authority.

<u>Unassigned fund balance</u> – amounts that are available for any purpose. No other fund except the General Fund can report positive amounts of unassigned fund balance.

The School would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

#### 12. Budget

An operating budget is adopted and maintained by the governing board of the School pursuant to the requirements of Florida Statutes. The budget is adopted using the same basis of accounting that is used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

#### NOTE B – CASH

Cash is made up of deposits and cash on hand totaling \$ 569,499 at June 30, 2020. The School's deposits must be placed with a financial institution designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as a "qualified public depository", as defined in Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The School deposits are held with a qualified depository and are covered by the collateral pool as the School has identified itself as a public entity. As of June 30, 2020, \$411,264 of the School's balances held were exposed to custodial credit risk.

#### **NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS**

Changes in capital assets activity were as follows:

	lance at y 1, 2019	Ac	dditions	Dele	tions	lance at e 30, 2020
Capital assets not depreciated:						
Land	\$ 13,413	\$		\$		\$ 13,413
	13,413				_	13,413
Capital assets depreciated:						
Buildings	344,757		22,977		-	367,734
Improvements other than buildings	320,236		1,480		-	321,716
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	41,214		1,074		-	42,288
Motor vehicles	 14,000					14,000
Total capital assets depreciated Less accumulated depreciation:	720,207		25,531			 745,738
Buildings	191,955		11,579		-	203,535
Improvements other than buildings	248,305		20,994		-	269,299
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	40,238		423		-	40,661
Motor vehicles	 		2,800			 2,800
Total accumulated depreciation	480,498		35,796		-	516,295
Total capital assets, net	\$ 253,122	\$	(10,265)	\$	-	\$ 242,856

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was charged to functions of the School as follows:

Basic instruction	\$ 1,286
Facilities	31,710
Transportion	 2,800
	\$ 35,796

#### **NOTE D – CONCENTRATIONS**

As stated in Note A-8, the School receives revenues for current operations primarily from the State of Florida through the local school district.

The following is a schedule of revenue sources and amounts:

Revenue sources passed through the	
School Board of Walton County, Florida	
FTE funding	\$ 1,238,657
Supplemental academic instruction	3,154
Safe schools	3,073
FEFP transfers	78,163
Total from local school district	1,323,047
Best and brightest award	17,209
Capital outlay	100,915
Title 1	 104,428
	\$ 1,545,599

#### **NOTE E – COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES**

#### 1. Operating leases

On August 16, 2018, the Charterholder entered into an addendum to a third-party non-cancelable lease agreement, originally dated August 7, 2013, for a modular classroom unit. The lease requires monthly payments of \$410 and expires August 5, 2019 with a month to month renewal. The current month to month payment are \$720.

On May 26, 2015, the School entered into an extension to a third-party non-cancelable lease agreement, originally dated May 29, 2012, for two modular classroom units. The lease requires monthly payments of \$237 and expires July 9, 2019. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal.

On June 20, 2018, the School entered into a third-party non-cancelable lease agreement, for a modular classroom. The lease requires monthly payments of \$1,282 and expires August 23, 2021.

The School entered into a noncancelable lease for equipment, commencing on November 6, 2015. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal. The term of the lease is \$266 monthly for 60 months.

#### **NOTE E – COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)**

#### 1. Operating leases (continued)

The School entered into a noncancelable lease for equipment, commencing on May 31, 2018. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal. The term of the lease is \$65 monthly for 60 months.

The School entered into a noncancelable lease for equipment, commencing on August 26, 2020. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal. The term of the lease is \$216 monthly for 60 months.

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was \$31,496. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the years ending June 30:

\$ 19,830
3,372
3,307
2,592
2,592
 216
\$ 31,909

#### 2. Management agreement

As of July 8, 2015, the School entered into a management agreement with a third party ("Management Company") to provide financial, human resources and administration related assistance to the School at a fee which the School's Board shall approve annually and shall be part of the annual and amended budget (See Note H-1). The agreement will remain in effect during the current term and subsequent terms of the charter contract between the School and Walton County School District, unless terminated. The management agreement will remain in effect during any subsequent terms of the charter contract between the School and School District unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the contact. Current year management fees charged to operations totaled \$278,219.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING

#### Florida Retirement System

General Information – Each qualified and participating employee of the School is included in the Florida Retirement System (FRS). As provided by Chapters 121 and 112, Florida Statutes, the FRS provides two cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, including the FRS Pension Plan ("Pension Plan") and the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy ("HIS Plan"). Under Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, the FRS also provides a defined contribution plan ("Investment Plan") alternative to the FRS Pension Plan, which is administered by the State Board of Administration ("SBA").

As a general rule, membership in the FRS is compulsory for all employees working in a regularly established position for a state agency, county government, district school board, state university, community college, or a participating city or special district with in the State of Florida. The FRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code. Amendments to the law can be made only by an act of the Florida State Legislature.

The State of Florida annually issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the FRS. The latest available report may be obtained by writing to the State of Florida Division of Retirement Department of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000, or from the Web site:

www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce operations/retirement/publications.

#### 1. Pension description

The pension plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, with a Deferred Retirement Option Program ("DROP") for eligible employees. Benefits under the pension plan are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and service credit. For pension plan members enrolled before July 1,

2011, regular class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of credited service.

Vested members with less than 30 years of service may retire before age 62 and receive reduced retirement benefits. Senior Management Service class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 1. Pension description (continued)

For plan members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight years of credited service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33 years of service regardless of age for Regular and Senior Management Service class members. Also, the final average compensation for all these members will be based on the eight highest years of salary.

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension Plan before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is three percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of three percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by three percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program allows eligible members to defer receipt of monthly retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants.

#### 2. Funding policy

Effective July 1, 2011, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP participants, are required to contribute three percent of their salary to the FRS. In addition to member contributions, governmental employers are required to make contributions to the FRS based on state-wide contribution rates established by the Florida Legislature.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 2. Funding policy (continued)

These rates are updated as of July 1 of each year. The employer contribution rates by job class for the periods from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, were as follows: Regular – 6.54%; Senior Management Service -22.78%; and DROP participants – 12.37%.

3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions</u>

These employer contribution rates include 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy for the periods July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

The School's contributions, including employee contributions, to the pension plan totaled \$59,776 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

At June 30, 2020, the School reported a liability of \$679,078 for its proportionate share of the Pension Plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The School's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the School's 2018-2019 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2017-2018 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2019, the School's proportionate share was 0.001971851 percent, which was a decrease of three percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)</u>

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the School recognized pension expense of \$168,803. In addition, the School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Description	Deferred Outflows of Resources		Inf	Deferred Inflows of Resources	
Differences between expected and					
actual experience	\$	40,278	\$	421	
Change in assumptions		174,416		-	
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Pension Plan investments		-		37,570	
Changes in proportion and differences between School Pension Plan contributions and proportionate share of contributions		51,040		10,715	
School Pension Plan contributions subsequent to the measurement date		59,776		, _	
subsequent to the measurement date	\$	325,510	\$	48,706	

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)</u>

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling \$59,776 resulting from School contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30:		 Amount	
	2020	\$ 66,632	
	2021	30,311	
	2022	56,541	
	2023	38,127	
	2024	11,177	
	Thereafter	 45,132	
		\$ 247,920	

#### 4. Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumption. Applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation	2.6%
Salary increases	3.25%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return	7.20%, net of pension plan investment Expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 4. Actuarial assumptions (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy's description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption for the based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

			Compound	
		Annual	Annual	
	Target	Arithmetic	(Geometric)	Standard
Asset Class	Allocation (1)	Return	Return	Deviation
Cash	1.0%	3.3%	3.3%	1.2%
Fixed income	18.0%	4.1%	4.1%	3.5%
Global equity	54.0%	8.0%	6.8%	16.5%
Real estate (property)	10.0%	6.7%	6.1%	11.7%
Private equity	11.0%	11.2%	8.4%	25.8%
Strategic investments	6.0%	5.9%	5.7%	6.7%
	100%			
Assumed Inflation - Mean			2.6%	1.7%

#### 5. <u>Discount rate</u>

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 6. Sensitivity of net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following represents the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.90%) or one percentage point higher (7.90%) than the current rate:

	Current			
	1% Decrease	Discount	1% Increase	
	(5.90%)	Rate (6.90%)	(7.90%)	
School's proportionate share of				
the net pension liability	\$ 1,173,900	\$ 679,078	\$ 265,818	

#### 7. Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FRD Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

#### 8. Payables to the pension plan

At June 30, 2020, the School reported zero payable for outstanding contributions to the Pension Plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS)

#### 1. Plan description

The HIS plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established under Section 112.363, Florida Statues, and may be amended by the Florida legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

#### 1. Plan description (continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment of \$5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a minimum HIS payment of \$30 and a maximum HIS payment of \$150 per month. To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree under a State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.

#### 2. Funding policy

The HIS plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the HIS contribution for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 was 1.66%. The School contributed 100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.

The School's contributions to the HIS Plan totaled \$16,355 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

### 3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions</u>

At June 30, 2020, the School reported a liability of \$345,245 for its proportionate share of the HIS plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The School's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the School's 2018-2019 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2017-2018 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2019, the School's proportionate share was 0.003085574 percent, which was an decrease of (.61) percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

### 3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)</u>

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the School recognized pension expense of \$34,673. In addition, the School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Ou	Deferred tflows of	In	eferred flows of
Description	Re	esources	Re	sources
Differences between expected and				
actual experience	\$	4,193	\$	423
Change in assumptions		39,976		28,218
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Pension Plan investments		223		_
Changes in proportion and differences between School Pension Plan contributions and proportionate share of contributions		44,405		9,203
School Pension Plan contributions		44,403		3,203
subsequent to the measurement date		16,355		
	\$	105,152	\$	37,844

The deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS plan, totaling \$16,355 resulting from School contributions to the HIS plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Fiscal Year Ending

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

### 3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred</u> inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

June 30:		A	mount
	2020	\$	14,907
	2021		13,567
	2022		13,477
	2023		9,028
	2024		6,114

2,054 59.147

Thereafter

#### 4. Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement.

Inflation 2.6%Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflationMunicipal bond rate 3.87%

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

#### 5. <u>Discount rate</u>

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.50%. In general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

#### 6. Sensitivity of net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following represents the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.50%) or one percentage point higher (4.50%) than the current rate:

	Current					
1% Decrease (2.50%)				1% Increase (4.50%)		
-	(2.30/0)	-110	tc (3.3070)	•	(4.5070)	
\$	394,115	\$	345,245	\$	304,542	
		(2.50%)	1% Decrease [ (2.50%) Ra	1% Decrease Discount (2.50%) Rate (3.50%)	1% Decrease Discount 1% (2.50%) Rate (3.50%)	

#### 7. Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information regarding the HIS plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

#### 8. Payables to the pension plan

At June 30, 2020, the School reported zero for outstanding contributions to the HIS plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

#### **NOTE H – RELATED PARTY**

#### 1. Management company

The management company provides financial, human resource, and administration services based on a contractual arrangement with the School. The management company manages the finances and operations and makes the final determinations regarding policies and contracts (See E-2). Total management fees charged to operations for the year ended June 30, 2020 are \$278,219.

#### 2. Shared operating expenses

The School shares IT services with a school operated by the same management company. During the year, the School was reimbursed in for these expenses in the amount of \$10.646.

The School also provides educational services under a contract with the Department of Juvenile Justice ("DJJ") Residential Community Facility in DeFuniak Springs, Florida. Under this contract, the School provides educational personnel and their salaries directly on behalf of the DJJ school which is operated by the same management company. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the School incurred expense on behalf of the DJJ School of \$280,346 and no outstanding receivable at June 30, 2020.

#### **NOTE I – RISK MANAGEMENT**

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the School carries commercial insurance. Under the policy for property insurance, the School's liability is \$1,000 per occurrence. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage during fiscal year 2020. Settled claims resulting for the risks described above have not exceeded the insurance coverage for each of the prior three years.

#### **NOTE J – NONEXCHANGE FINANCIAL GUARANTEES**

On May 21. 2020, the School received loan proceeds in the amount of approximately \$224,709 under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans and accrued interest are guaranteed forgivable by the Small Business Administration (SBA) after eight weeks of utilization as long as the School uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces salaries during the eight-week period.

#### **NOTE K – NONEXCHANGE FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)**

Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months. At this time, the School intends the proceeds received will be used for eligible purposes consistent with described conditions and believes it is more likely than not that the SBA will grant the forgiveness in full in accord with the guarantee.

The liability recognized for the non-exchange financial guarantee by the School at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

#### NOTE L – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2020, the date which the financial statements were available for issuance; and has determined that no material events occurred that would require additional disclosure in the financial statements except as follows:

On March 9, 2020, the Governor of the State of Florida declared a state of emergency in response to the global Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic. In the weeks following the declaration, precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus had been ordered. These measures including the closing of schools and requiring Florida residents to stay home unless they are leaving for essential functions. Over the following weeks, a step process was used by the Florida economy to slowly reopened and on July 6, 2020, the State of Florida Department of Education, under the directions of the Governor, announced the reopening of the School related to 2020-21 Florida's Optional Innovative Reopening Plan.

Under this plan, the School is to provide students with three options to return to School. The first option is the students return to the brick and mortar building 5 days a week, the second option for students is a Walton Virtual School which allows the student to enroll in a separate virtual school, and third, Innovative Learning Digital Academy which is district learning from home with enrollment in the student's current school; synchronous interaction with an instructor and peers five days a week.

The School has implemented these change to the 2020-21 School year and is expecting a minor impact on the School related to these changes due to fact the School has operated on a blended model with implementation and adjustment being minor. On the other hand, enrollment at the School might have a minor impact related to the student referrals it receives from the School District. The School is estimating a potential decline in referral revenues provided by the district between 10% to 11% related to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

#### NOTE L – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

In addition to mandated operational changes by the State, the School received Paycheck Protection Program Funds provided under the CARES act to continue to pay teachers over closure weeks of the School in March. The School has allocated these funds to used only related to payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its payroll levels over the eight-week coverage period in accordance with the restriction of the loan forgiveness. As of August 31, 2020, the School has used all monies related to these requirements and is applying for forgiveness of the loan closer by the end of the 2020 year per the bank's instructions. The School believes it is more likely than not that it will receive forgiveness of the loan and has met the forgiveness requirements.

The future impact of COVID-19 pandemic may possible affect future operating costs and revenues in the event of resurgence of cases and potential shut downs by the State or City.

On July, 7 2020, the School has renewed for five years by mutual agreement between the School and the charter of the School. The charter is effective until June 30, 2025.

**REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION** 

## Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY For the year ended June 30, 2020

#### FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

				School's					
				proportionate					
						share of the net			
		9	School's			pension liability	Plan fiduciary		
	School's	pro	portionate			(asset) as a	net position as a		
	proportion of	shar	e of the net			percentage of its	percentage of		
	the net pension	pens	sion liability	School's covered-		covered-	the total pension		
	liability (asset)		(asset)	emp	loyee payroll	employee payroll	liability		
2019	0.001971851%	\$	679,078	\$	1,001,033	67.84%	82.61%		
2018	0.001909773%	\$	575,234	\$	804,384	71.51%	84.26%		
2017	0.001967710%	\$	582,035	\$	1,040,894	55.92%	83.89%		
2016	0.001704266%	\$	430,329	\$	1,008,902	42.65%	84.88%		
2015	0.001350565%	\$	174,444	\$	853,233	20.45%	92.00%		
2014	0.001347008%	\$	82,187	\$	676,979	12.14%	96.09%		

#### **HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY**

						School's	
						proportionate	
						share of the net	
		9	School's			pension liability	Plan fiduciary
	School's	pro	portionate			(asset) as a	net position as a
	proportion of	shar	e of the net			percentage of its	percentage of
	the net pension	pens	ion liability	School's covered-		covered-	the total pension
	liability (asset)		(asset)	emp	loyee payroll	employee payroll	liability
2019	0.003085574%	\$	345,245	\$	1,001,033	34.49%	2.63%
2018	0.003104449%	\$	328,578	\$	804,384	40.85%	2.15%
2017	0.003157559%	\$	337,621	\$	1,040,894	32.44%	1.64%
2016	0.002763909%	\$	322,122	\$	1,008,902	31.93%	0.97%
2015	0.002241697%	\$	228,618	\$	853,233	26.79%	0.50%
2014	0.002245976%	\$	210,004	\$	676,979	31.02%	0.99%

<sup>\*</sup> The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 06/30.

See notes to required supplemental information.

#### FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

	re	tractually equired tribution	rela con	ributions in tion to the stractually equired ntribution	 ntribution ency (excess)	Cove	ered-employee payroll	Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll
2019	\$	59,766	\$	59,766	\$ -	\$	1,001,033	5.97%
2018	\$	61,142	\$	61,142	\$ -	\$	804,384	7.60%
2017	\$	54,427	\$	54,427	\$ -	\$	1,040,894	5.23%
2016	\$	51,224	\$	51,224	\$ -	\$	1,008,902	5.08%
2015	\$	41,561	\$	41,561	\$ -	\$	853,233	4.87%
2014	\$	32,928	\$	32,928	\$ -	\$	676,979	4.86%

#### **HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY**

	r	ntractually required ntribution	rela cor	ributions in tion to the atractually equired atribution	 ntribution ency (excess)	Cove	ered-employee payroll	Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll
2019	\$	16,355	\$	16,355	\$ -	\$	1,001,033	1.63%
2018	\$	17,134	\$	17,134	\$ -	\$	804,384	2.13%
2017	\$	16,836	\$	16,836	\$ -	\$	1,040,894	1.62%
2016	\$	16,711	\$	16,711	\$ -	\$	1,008,902	1.66%
2015	\$	14,176	\$	14,176	\$ -	\$	853,233	1.66%
2014	\$	8,569	\$	8,569	\$ -	\$	676,979	1.27%

# Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND For the year ended June 30, 2020

	Budgeted	Amounts		
Revenues	Original	Final	Actual	Variance with Final Budget
FEFP	\$ 1,322,263	\$ 1,237,401	\$ 1,238,657	\$ 1,256
Lead teacher funds	2,928	2,928	3,154	226
Referral Billing	100,000	100,000	78,163	(21,837)
Reading allocation	8,316	-	-	-
Mental health assistance	5,470	-	-	-
Best and brightest award	-	-	17,209	17,209
Saftey and security funds	-	-	3,073	3,073
Digital instruction	1,600	-	-	-
Interest	-	-	139	139
Uniforms	40.500	10 500	1,404	1,404
Donations Miscellaneous	10,500 2,000	10,500 2,000	7,335 18	(3,165) (1,982)
E-Rate	10,250	10,250	11,061	811
				<del></del>
Total revenues	1,463,327	1,363,079	1,360,213	(2,866)
Expenditures				
Salaries	681,826	670,000	649,130	20,870
Retirement	60,000	56,000	57,057	(1,057)
Social Security	53,000 110,926	52,000 96,500	51,810 89,976	190 6,524
Group Insurance	7,500	7,510		1,387
Worker's Comp Unemployment compensation	1,500	1,500	6,123 161	1,339
Management fee	278,219	278,219	278,219	1,559
Audit/Accounting	8,000	8,000	7,000	1,000
Computer services	15,000	15,000	9,873	5,127
SRO	31,475	31,475	26,559	4,916
Mental health assistance	9,000	_	-	-
Curriculum/Staff Development	1,000	-	32	(32)
Professional services - other	500	-	45	(45)
Insurance	12,500	12,500	13,247	(747)
Travel	6,200	6,000	2,796	3,204
Vehicle/Maint	650	650	409	241
Computer repair	-	-	450	(450)
Inspections/Fire Ext	650	650	125	525
Lease-Copier	4,200	4,200	4,787	(587)
Rental-misc	3,000	3,000	4,211	(1,211)
Postage	2,000	2,000	923	1,077
Radio Internet	-	-	(106) 923	106 (923)
Telephone	20,500	20,500	19,236	1,264
Water/Sewer	4,800	4,800	5,845	(1,045)
Garbage	2,650	2,650	2,603	47
Printing-Advertising	1,000	1,000	203	797
Printing	2,600	2,600	-	2,600
Pest Control	1,800	1,800	1,235	565
Security Monitoring	500	500	540	(40)
Lawn service	4,050	6,695	6,270	425
Misc. Non-prof.Svc	6,100	7,200	7,131	69
Elect/Gas	35,000	35,000	34,191	809
Gas/Vehicles	500	500	204	296
Uniforms	-	-	882	(882)
Supplies	55,000	35,000	30,251	4,749
Instructional Material Lunches	14,000 400	12,500 400	15,369	(2,869) 400
Equipment	2,500	3,500	- 3,555	(55)
Computer Equipment	1,600	3,300	3,333	(33)
Software	10,000	_	366	(366)
Fees/Miscellaneous	4,000	4,000	2,773	1,227
Auto tags & fess	-	-	16	(16)
Substitutes/Temporary	7,500	7,500	18,060	(10,560)
Total expenditures	1,461,646	1,391,349	1,352,480	38,869
Net change in fund balance	1,681	(28,270)	7,733	36,003
Fund balance at July 1, 2019	194,848	194,848	194,848	
Fund balance at June 30, 2020	\$ 196,529	\$ 166,578	\$ 202,581	\$ 36,003

# Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL – CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND For the year ended June 30, 2020

	<b>Budgeted Amounts</b>					
		Original		Final	 Actual	ance with al Budget
Revenues					 	
Charter school capital outlay	\$	107,782	\$	99,255	\$ 100,915	\$ 1,660
Expenditures		_		_		
Salaries		14,000		10,575	8,316	2,259
Retirement		1,156		895	704	191
Social security		1,071		810	636	174
Unemployment compensation		150		150	3	147
Insurance		7,189		8,678	8,678	-
Repairs/Maint		25,000		25,000	11,590	13,410
Lease-Facility		28,200		28,200	28,230	(30)
Supplies		1,000		-	-	-
Computer equipment		-		10,000	-	10,000
Computer equipment non-capital		-		1,600	-	1,600
Improvements other than Buildings		8,000		1,500	1,480	20
Remodeling and renovation		20,000		25,000	21,871	3,129
Software		28,500		28,500	28,498	2
Total expenditures		134,266		140,908	110,006	30,902
Net change in fund balance		(26,484)		(41,653)	(9,091)	32,562
Fund balance at July 1, 2019		152,092		152,092	152,092	
Fund balance at June 30, 2020	\$	125,608	\$	110,439	\$ 143,001	\$ 32,562

### Walton Academy, Inc. NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION June 30, 2020

#### NOTE A – SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

#### 1. Ten-year trend

GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is completed, the School is presenting information for only those years for which information is available for the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) plans.

#### 2. Fiduciary net position

The FRS and HIS plans' fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability is published in the FRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (See FRS CAFR information).

#### **NOTE B – SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS**

#### Ten-year trend

GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is completed, the School is presenting information for only those years for which information is available for the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) plans.

#### **NOTE C – BUDGETARY INFORMATION**

The School's annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual budgets are adopted for the general and capital outlay funds and may be amended by the School's Board of Directors (the "Board"). The budgets presented for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, have been amended according to Board Procedures.

Budgets are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is the object level.

**COMPLIANCE INFORMATION** 



## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors Walton Academy, Inc. DeFuniak Springs, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Walton Academy, Inc. (the "School"), a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2020.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the School's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 14, 2020

McDoncyh (PA Solutions, PA

Melbourne, Florida

#### MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Board of Directors Walton Academy, Inc. DeFuniak Springs, Florida

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the financial statements of Walton Academy, Inc. (the "School"), a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2020.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor General.

#### **Other Reports and Schedules**

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*. Disclosures in that report, which are dated September 14, 2020, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

#### **Prior Audit Findings**

Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. In connection with our audit, the School did not have prior year findings.

#### Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires the name or official title of the entity and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed in this management letter. The official title and the school code assigned by the Department of Education of the entity is Walton Academy, Inc.; 1111.

#### **Financial Condition and Management**

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. And 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate whether or not the School has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the School did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the School. It is management's responsibility to monitor the School's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Audit General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

#### Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7 and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the School maintains on its Web site the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that the School maintained on its Web site the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

#### **Additional Matters**

Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

#### **Purpose of this Letter**

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, Board of Directors, applicable School's management, others within the School, and the Walton County School District, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

September 14, 2020

McDoncyh (PA Solutions, PA

Melbourne, Florida

#### MANAGEMENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, there were no audit findings, recommendations, or responses.

### Walton Academy, Inc.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020



#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	PAGE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1-3
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	4-9
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-Wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	10
Statement of Activities	11
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds	12
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position	13
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds	14
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	15
Notes to Financial Statements	16-39
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of School's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability Florida Retirement System and Health Insurance Subsidy	41
Schedule of School's Pension Contributions Florida Retirement System and Health Insurance Subsidy	42
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – General Fund	43
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – Capital Outlay Fund	44

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)**

Notes to Required Supplemental Information	45
COMPLIANCE INFORMATION	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	47-48
Management Letter	49-50
Management Findings Recommendations and Responses	51



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors Walton Academy, Inc. DeFuniak Springs, Florida

#### **Report of the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Walton Academy, Inc. (the "School"), a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Opinions**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note A-1, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present only the financial position of the School at June 30, 2020, and the results of its operations for the year then ended, and is not intended to be a complete presentation of the District.

#### Other Matters

#### Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 14, 2020, on our consideration of the School's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 14, 2020

McDoncyh (PA Solutions, PA

Melbourne, Florida

#### **Management's Discussion and Analysis**

As management of Walton Academy (the "School"), we offer readers of the School's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview and analysis of the School's financial activities, (c) identify changes in the School's financial position, (d) identify material deviations from the approved budget, and (e) highlight significant issues in individual funds.

Since the information contained in the Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") is intended to highlight significant transactions, events, and conditions, it should be considered in conjunction with the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

#### **Financial Highlights**

- The assets of the School exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by \$ 91,575 .
- The School's total net position decreased by \$ 138,972.
- As of the close of the current fiscal year, the School's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of \$ 345,582.
- At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was \$202,581.

#### **Overview of the Financial Statements**

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School's financial statements. The School's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial statements.

#### The School as a Whole

The information in the government-wide financial statements includes all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting (and reports depreciation on capital assets), which is similar to the basis of accounting used by most private-sector companies.

The change in net position (liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets plus deferred outflows of resource) over time is one indicator of whether the School's financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one needs to consider other nonfinancial factors in making an assessment of the School's health, such as changes in enrollment, changes in the State's funding of educational costs, changes in the economy, etc., to assess the overall health of the School.

**Government-wide financial statements.** The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the School's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the School's assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the School's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected funding and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the School that are principally supported by District, State, and Federal funding (governmental activities). Basic instruction, exceptional instruction, and school administration are examples of the School's governmental activities.

The government-wide financial statements include only the School itself, which is a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida. The Walton County School District, Florida includes the operation of the School in their operations.

The governmental-wide financial statements can be found listed on the table of contents of this report.

**Fund financial statements.** A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The School, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the operations of the School are presented in governmental and fiduciary funds.

**Governmental funds.** Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The School maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The general fund and capital outlay fund are considered to be major funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found listed on the table of contents in this report.

The School adopts an annual appropriated budget A budgetary comparison statement has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget and can be found listed in the table of contents in this report.

**Notes to financial statements.** The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found listed on the table of contents in this report.

#### **Government-Wide Financial Analysis**

As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a School's financial position. In the case of the School, liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets plus deferred outflows of resource by \$ 91,575 and \$ 47,398 as of ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

A large portion of the School's net position is the unrestricted portion. Another portion of the net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., buildings, improvements other than buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment). The School uses these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The net investment in capital assets totaled \$242,856 at June 30, 2020.

Comparison of the condensed statement of net position and the statement of activities are provided below.

	2020	2019	Variance		
ASSETS					
Current assets	\$ 575,695	\$ 369,875	\$ 205,820		
Capital assets - net	242,856	253,122	(10,266)		
Total assets	818,551	622,997	195,554		
Deferred outflows of resources	430,662	482,497	(51,835)		
LIABILITIES					
Current liabilities	230,113	22,935	207,178		
Noncurrent liabilities	1,024,125	903,612	120,513		
Total liabilities	1,254,238	926,547	327,691		
Deferred inflows of resources	86,550	131,549	(44,999)		
NET POSITION					
Net investment in capital assets	242,856	253,122	(10,266)		
Restricted	143,001	152,092	(9,091)		
Unrestricted	(477,432)	(357,817)	(119,615)		
Total net position	\$ (91,575)	\$ 47,397	\$ (138,972)		

The increase in current assets is mostly related to cash proceeds from the paycheck protection program (PPP) loan established in response to COVID-9 pandemic. The changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources are due to the changes in assumptions, experience, investments, employer specific changes and subsequent contributions to the measurement date. The increase in current liabilities is mainly due to a non-exchange financial guarantee (PPP loan) executed to protect salaries during the COVID-19 pandemic. The increase in noncurrent liabilities is due to the increase in pension liabilities. Unrestricted net position decreased mainly due to the increase in pension expense.

Changes in the School's revenues were as follows:

2020			2019		Variance
\$	124,710	\$	91,934	\$	32,776
	100,915		107,785		(6,870)
	1,339,931		1,504,489		(164,558)
\$ 1,565,556		\$	1,704,208	\$	(138,652)
		\$ 124,710 100,915 1,339,931	\$ 124,710 \$ 100,915 1,339,931	\$ 124,710 \$ 91,934 100,915 107,785 1,339,931 1,504,489	\$ 124,710 \$ 91,934 \$ 100,915 107,785 1,339,931 1,504,489

The changes in revenues is due to the decrease in the School's enrollment and the decrease in capital outlay counterbalanced by increases in best and brightest awards and safety and security funds.

Changes in the School's expenses were as follows:

	2020		2019		Variance
Basic instruction	\$ 759,569	\$	860,881	\$	(101,312)
Psychological services	82,181		52,496		29,685
Staff development	82		2,514		(2,432)
Board	14,279		11,350		2,929
General administration	457		-		457
School administration	317,965		326,709		(8,744)
Facilities	115,849		136,944		(21,095)
Fiscal services	146,964		148,497		(1,533)
Food services	-		24		(24)
Staff services	147,671		146,328		1,343
Transportation	7,929		7,084		845
Operation of plant	99,554		98,783		771
Maintenance of plant	45		-		45
Administrative technology	 11,983		15,898		(3,915)
	\$ 1,704,528	\$	1,807,508	\$	(102,980)

The decrease in basic instruction is mostly due to decreases in salaries corresponding to student enrollments and uniforms for students. Psychological services increased largely in relationship to salaries for counseling. School administration decreased mainly due to administrators' salaries and School Resource Officer's fees. Facilities decreased primarily due to repairs and maintenance of the School.

#### Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As previously noted, the School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

**Governmental funds.** The focus of the School's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the School's financing requirements. In particular, the unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the School's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of \$ 345,582. Of those funds, the general fund is the chief operating funds which included a total amount \$202,581, of unassigned fund balance, which is the amount available for spending at the School's discretion.

#### **General Fund Budgetary Highlights**

Budgeted revenues exceeded actual revenues by \$2,866 while budgeted expenditures exceeded actual expenditures by \$38,869.

The budgetary information can be found listed on the table of contents in this report.

#### **Capital Asset and Debt Administration**

**Capital Assets.** The School's net investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of June 30, 2020 amounts to \$242,856 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, and furniture, fixtures and equipment.

**Debt and Long-Term Liabilities.** At the end of the current fiscal year, the School had an outstanding net pension liability of \$ 1,024,125 for employee's pension in the Florida Retirement System.

#### **Economic Factor**

A majority of the School's funding is determined by the number of enrolled students. The School is forecasting enrollment to be 160 students for the 2020/2021 school year comparative to the 159 enrolled in 2019/2020. In addition, the School is estimating a potential decline in referrals provided by the district between 10% to 11% related to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

#### **Request for Information**

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School's finances for all those with an interest in the School's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Walton Academy, 389 Dorsey Avenue, DeFuniak Springs, FL 32435.

## Walton Academy, Inc. STATEMENT OF NET POSITION June 30, 2020

#### **ASSETS**

CURRENT ASSETS	
Cash	\$ 569,499
Accounts receivable	175
Deposits	6,021
Total current assets	575,695
CAPITAL ASSETS	
Capital assets not being depreciated:	
Land	13,413
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:	
Buildings	164,199
Improvements other than buildings	52,417
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	1,627
Vehicles	11,200
Total capital assets,net	 242,856
Total assets	 818,551
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred assumptions, contributions, and experience	430,662
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION	
LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable	10,194
Accrued payroll liabilities	3,459
Nonexchange financial guarantee	216,460
Noncurrent liabilities:	
Net Pension Liability	 1,024,125
Total liabilities	 1,254,238
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred change in proportion (NPL), contributions,	
experience, and investments	86,550
NET POSITION	
Net investment in capital assets	242,856
Restricted for:	
Capital outlay	143,001
Unrestricted	(477,432)
Total net position	\$ (91,575)

## Walton Academy, Inc. STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the year ended June 30, 2020

Functions/Programs	E	xpenses	·	es for rices	Gr	perating ants and tributions	·	and ortibutions	Re <sup>°</sup> Cha	t (Expense) venue and nges in Net Position
Governmental Activities:										
Basic instruction	\$	759,569	\$	-	\$	124,710	\$	-	\$	(634,859)
Psychological services		82,181		-		-		-		(82,181)
Staff development		82		-		-		-		(82)
Board		14,279		-		-		-		(14,279)
General administration		457								(457)
School administration		317,965		-		-		-		(317,965)
Facilities		115,849		-		-		100,915		(14,934)
Fiscal services		146,964		-			-		(146,964)	
Staff services		147,671		-	-		-		(147,671)	
Transportation		7,929		-	-		-		(7,929)	
Operation of plant		99,554		-	-		-		(99,554)	
Maintenance of plant		45		-		-		-		(45)
Administrative technology		11,983						-		(11,983)
Total governmental activities	\$	1,704,528	\$		\$	124,710	\$	100,915		(1,478,903)
					Genera	al revenues:				
					Flori	da education	finan	ce program		1,319,974
			Other revenues					19,957		
			Total general revenues						1,339,931	
			Change in net position						(138,972)	
					Net po	sition at July	1, 201	9		47,397
					Net po	sition at June	e 30, 20	020	\$	(91,575)

## Walton Academy, Inc. BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS June 30, 2020

	Ger	neral Fund	Сар	ital Outlay Fund	Goverr	her nmental nds	Total ernmental Funds
ASSETS							
Cash	\$	569,499	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 569,499
Accounts receivable		175		-		-	175
Deposits		6,021		-		-	6,021
Due from other funds				143,001			 143,001
Total assets	\$	575,695	\$	143,001	\$		\$ 718,696
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES							
LIABILITIES							
Accounts payable	\$	10,194	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 10,194
Accrued payroll liabilities		3,459		-		-	3,459
Nonexchange financial guarantee		216,460		-		-	216,460
Due to other funds		143,001					 143,001
Total liabilities		373,114					 373,114
FUND BALANCES							
Restricted for capital outlay		-		143,001		-	143,001
Unassigned		202,581				-	 202,581
Total fund balances		202,581		143,001			 345,582
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$	575,695	\$	143,001	\$	-	\$ 718,696

# Walton Academy, Inc. RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION For the year ended June 30, 2020

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds		\$ 345,582
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. Those assets consist of:  Capital assets	\$ 759,151	242.056
Accumulated depreciation	 (516,295)	242,856
Deferred outflows and inflows or resources related to pensions are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds		
Deferred outflows of resources	\$ 430,662	
Deferred inflows of resources	 (86,550)	344,112
Noncurrent liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the		
funds.		(1,024,125)
Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities		\$ (91,575)

# Walton Academy, Inc. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS For the year ended June 30, 2020

		Capital Outlay	Other Governmental	Total Governmental
	General Fund	Fund	Funds	Funds
Revenues				
Federal passed through state and local	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 104,428	\$ 104,428
State passed through local school district	1,340,256	100,915	· 101,120	1,441,171
Other revenues	19,957	-	-	19,957
Total revenues	1,360,213	100,915	104,428	1,565,556
Expenditures				
Current:				
Basic instruction	498,057	-	104,428	602,485
Psychological services	87,716	-	-	87,716
Staff development	82	-	-	82
Board of directors	14,279	-	-	14,279
General administration	457	-	-	457
School administration	339,954	-	-	339,954
Facilities	-	86,655	-	86,655
Fiscal services	146,964	-	-	146,964
Staff services	147,671	-	-	147,671
Transportation	5,129	-	-	5,129
Operation of plant	100,143	-	-	100,143
Maintenance of plant	45	-	-	45
Administrative technology	11,983	-	-	11,983
Capital outlay		23,351		23,351
	1,352,480	110,006	104,428	1,566,914
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over				
(under) expenditures	7,733	(9,091)	-	(1,358)
Fund balances at July 1, 2019	194,848	152,092		346,940
Fund balances at June 30, 2020	\$ 202,581	\$ 143,001	\$ -	\$ 345,582

#### Walton Academy, Inc.

### RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES –GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the year ended June 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds		\$ (1,358)
The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities is different because:		
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This and the net effect of various other transactions involving capital assets increased net position.  Capital outlay	\$ 25,531	
Provision for depreciation	 (35,796)	(10,265)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.		
Decrease in pension expense		(127,349)
Change in Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities		\$ (138,972)

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### 1. Reporting entity

Walton Academy (the "School"), is a not-for-profit corporation organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, the Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation Act, and Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. The Charter School provides educational services to students at-risk in grades six through twelve. The governing body of the School is the Board of Directors, which is composed of four members.

The general operating authority of the School is contained in Section 1002.33, Florida Statutes. The school operates under a charter of the sponsoring school district, which is the Walton County School District, Florida (the "District). The current charter is effective until June 30, 2020, and may be renewed in increments of five years by mutual agreement between the School and the District. At the end of the term of the charter, the District may choose not to renew the charter under grounds specified in the charter in which case the District is required to notify the School in writing at least 90 days prior to the charter's expiration. During the term of the charter, the District may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown. The School is considered a component unit of the Walton County District School Board. The financial information presented is that of Walton Academy only.

#### 2. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the School. As part of the consolidation process, all interfund activities are eliminated from these statements. Both statements report only governmental activities as the School does not engage in any business type activities.

Net position, the difference between assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources, as presented in the statement of net position, are subdivided into three categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints are imposed on the use of the amounts either externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, or enabling legislation.

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 2. Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

The statement of activities presents a comparison between the direct and indirect expenses of a given function and its program revenues, and displays the extent to which each function contributes to the change in net position for the fiscal year. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable to a specific function.

Indirect expenses are costs the School has allocated to various functions. Program revenues consist of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions.

Charges for services refer to amounts received from those who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment. Grants and contributions consist of revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Revenues not classified as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements report detailed information about the School's governmental funds. The focus of the governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. Therefore, major funds are reported in separate columns on the fund financial statements. Two of the School's funds were deemed major funds. A reconciliation is provided that converts the results of governmental fund accounting to the government-wide presentation.

#### 3. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred.

All governmental fund financial statements are reported using a current financial resources measurement focus on a modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues, except for certain grant revenues, are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Available means collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the School considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the current fiscal period.

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### 3. <u>Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation</u> (continued)

When grant terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for determining eligibility for federal, state, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as expenditures only when payment is due.

The School's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Accordingly, the financial statements are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is an accounting entity having a self-balancing set of accounts for recording assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, expenditures and other financing sources and uses.

Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The School reports the following major governmental funds:

<u>General Fund</u> – is the general operating fund of the School and is used to account for all resources not required to be accounted for in another fund.

<u>Capital Outlay Fund</u> – in accordance with guidelines established by the Walton County District School Board. This fund accounts for all resources for the leasing or acquisition of capital facilities by the School to the extent funded by capital outlay funds.

#### 4. <u>Cash</u>

Cash consists of cash on hand at the School and checking accounts held at a financial institution. The School has no cash equivalents.

#### 5. Receivables

The School's receivables consist of receivables from service programs and amounts due from other agencies. After reviewing the individual account balances, the School's management has determined, based on prior experience, that 100% of receivables are fully collectible. Therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided.

#### NOTE A – SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 6. <u>Interfund activity</u>

Activity between the funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as due to/from other funds. At the end of the year, the general owed the capital outlay fund \$143,001.

#### 7. Capital assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental columns on the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the School as assets with an initial individual cost of more than \$1,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market values at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the School are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

	Estimated Useful
Asset Class	Lives
Buildings	9
Improvements other than buildings	5-15
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	5-9
Motor Vehicle	5

#### NOTE A – SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 8. Revenue sources

Revenues for current operations are received primarily from the State of Florida passed through the District pursuant to the funding provisions included in the School's charter. In accordance with the funding provisions of the charter and Section 1002.33(17), Florida Statutes, the School reports the number of full-time equivalent ("FTE") students and related data to the District.

Under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes the District reports the number of FTE students and related data to the Florida Department of Education ("FDOE") for funding through the Florida Education Finance Program. Funding for the School is adjusted during the year to reflect the revised calculations by the FDOE under the Florida Education Finance Program and actual weighted FTE students reported by the School during designated FTE student survey periods.

The School receives federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs. This assistance is generally based on applications submitted to and approved by various granting agencies. These federal awards may have requirements whereby the issuance of grant funds is withheld until qualifying eligible expenditures are incurred. Revenues for these awards are recognized only to the extent that eligible expenditures have been incurred.

Additionally, other revenues may be derived from various fundraising activities and certain other programs.

#### 9. Use of estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may differ from estimated amounts.

#### NOTE A – SUMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 10. Income taxes

The School is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable state law.

The School recognizes the financial statement effects from a tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

Examples of tax positions include the tax-exempt status of the School and various positions related to the potential sources of unrelated business taxable income. The assessment of the technical merits of a tax position is a matter of judgment. The School believes that all of its tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. The School files Form 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction.

#### 11. Fund balance classifications

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the School is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance – amounts that are not spendable (such as inventory and prepaid expenses) or are required to be maintained intact.

<u>Restricted fund balance</u> – amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

<u>Committed fund balance</u> – amounts constrained to specific purposes by the School itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., Board of Directors). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the School takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

#### 11. Fund balance classifications (continued)

<u>Assigned fund balance</u> – amounts the School intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the Board of Directors or by an official or body to which the Board of Directors delegates the authority.

<u>Unassigned fund balance</u> – amounts that are available for any purpose. No other fund except the General Fund can report positive amounts of unassigned fund balance.

The School would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

#### 12. Budget

An operating budget is adopted and maintained by the governing board of the School pursuant to the requirements of Florida Statutes. The budget is adopted using the same basis of accounting that is used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

#### NOTE B – CASH

Cash is made up of deposits and cash on hand totaling \$ 569,499 at June 30, 2020. The School's deposits must be placed with a financial institution designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as a "qualified public depository", as defined in Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The School deposits are held with a qualified depository and are covered by the collateral pool as the School has identified itself as a public entity. As of June 30, 2020, \$411,264 of the School's balances held were exposed to custodial credit risk.

#### **NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS**

Changes in capital assets activity were as follows:

	lance at y 1, 2019	Ac	dditions	Dele	tions	lance at e 30, 2020
Capital assets not depreciated:						
Land	\$ 13,413	\$		\$		\$ 13,413
	13,413				_	13,413
Capital assets depreciated:						
Buildings	344,757		22,977		-	367,734
Improvements other than buildings	320,236		1,480		-	321,716
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	41,214		1,074		-	42,288
Motor vehicles	14,000					14,000
Total capital assets depreciated Less accumulated depreciation:	720,207		25,531			 745,738
Buildings	191,955		11,579		-	203,535
Improvements other than buildings	248,305		20,994		-	269,299
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	40,238		423		-	40,661
Motor vehicles	 		2,800			 2,800
Total accumulated depreciation	480,498		35,796		-	516,295
Total capital assets, net	\$ 253,122	\$	(10,265)	\$	-	\$ 242,856

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was charged to functions of the School as follows:

Basic instruction	\$ 1,286
Facilities	31,710
Transportion	 2,800
	\$ 35,796

#### **NOTE D – CONCENTRATIONS**

As stated in Note A-8, the School receives revenues for current operations primarily from the State of Florida through the local school district.

The following is a schedule of revenue sources and amounts:

Revenue sources passed through the	
School Board of Walton County, Florida	
FTE funding	\$ 1,238,657
Supplemental academic instruction	3,154
Safe schools	3,073
FEFP transfers	78,163
Total from local school district	1,323,047
Best and brightest award	17,209
Capital outlay	100,915
Title 1	 104,428
	\$ 1,545,599

#### **NOTE E – COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES**

#### 1. Operating leases

On August 16, 2018, the Charterholder entered into an addendum to a third-party non-cancelable lease agreement, originally dated August 7, 2013, for a modular classroom unit. The lease requires monthly payments of \$410 and expires August 5, 2019 with a month to month renewal. The current month to month payment are \$720.

On May 26, 2015, the School entered into an extension to a third-party non-cancelable lease agreement, originally dated May 29, 2012, for two modular classroom units. The lease requires monthly payments of \$237 and expires July 9, 2019. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal.

On June 20, 2018, the School entered into a third-party non-cancelable lease agreement, for a modular classroom. The lease requires monthly payments of \$1,282 and expires August 23, 2021.

The School entered into a noncancelable lease for equipment, commencing on November 6, 2015. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal. The term of the lease is \$266 monthly for 60 months.

#### **NOTE E – COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)**

#### 1. Operating leases (continued)

The School entered into a noncancelable lease for equipment, commencing on May 31, 2018. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal. The term of the lease is \$65 monthly for 60 months.

The School entered into a noncancelable lease for equipment, commencing on August 26, 2020. The School has extended the lease with a month to month renewal. The term of the lease is \$216 monthly for 60 months.

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was \$31,496. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the years ending June 30:

\$ 19,830
3,372
3,307
2,592
2,592
 216
\$ 31,909

#### 2. Management agreement

As of July 8, 2015, the School entered into a management agreement with a third party ("Management Company") to provide financial, human resources and administration related assistance to the School at a fee which the School's Board shall approve annually and shall be part of the annual and amended budget (See Note H-1). The agreement will remain in effect during the current term and subsequent terms of the charter contract between the School and Walton County School District, unless terminated. The management agreement will remain in effect during any subsequent terms of the charter contract between the School and School District unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the contact. Current year management fees charged to operations totaled \$278,219.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING

#### Florida Retirement System

General Information – Each qualified and participating employee of the School is included in the Florida Retirement System (FRS). As provided by Chapters 121 and 112, Florida Statutes, the FRS provides two cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, including the FRS Pension Plan ("Pension Plan") and the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy ("HIS Plan"). Under Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, the FRS also provides a defined contribution plan ("Investment Plan") alternative to the FRS Pension Plan, which is administered by the State Board of Administration ("SBA").

As a general rule, membership in the FRS is compulsory for all employees working in a regularly established position for a state agency, county government, district school board, state university, community college, or a participating city or special district with in the State of Florida. The FRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code. Amendments to the law can be made only by an act of the Florida State Legislature.

The State of Florida annually issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the FRS. The latest available report may be obtained by writing to the State of Florida Division of Retirement Department of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000, or from the Web site:

www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce operations/retirement/publications.

#### 1. Pension description

The pension plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, with a Deferred Retirement Option Program ("DROP") for eligible employees. Benefits under the pension plan are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and service credit. For pension plan members enrolled before July 1,

2011, regular class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of credited service.

Vested members with less than 30 years of service may retire before age 62 and receive reduced retirement benefits. Senior Management Service class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 1. Pension description (continued)

For plan members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight years of credited service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33 years of service regardless of age for Regular and Senior Management Service class members. Also, the final average compensation for all these members will be based on the eight highest years of salary.

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension Plan before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is three percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of three percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by three percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program allows eligible members to defer receipt of monthly retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants.

#### 2. Funding policy

Effective July 1, 2011, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP participants, are required to contribute three percent of their salary to the FRS. In addition to member contributions, governmental employers are required to make contributions to the FRS based on state-wide contribution rates established by the Florida Legislature.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 2. Funding policy (continued)

These rates are updated as of July 1 of each year. The employer contribution rates by job class for the periods from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, were as follows: Regular – 6.54%; Senior Management Service -22.78%; and DROP participants – 12.37%.

3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions</u>

These employer contribution rates include 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy for the periods July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

The School's contributions, including employee contributions, to the pension plan totaled \$59,776 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

At June 30, 2020, the School reported a liability of \$679,078 for its proportionate share of the Pension Plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The School's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the School's 2018-2019 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2017-2018 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2019, the School's proportionate share was 0.001971851 percent, which was a decrease of three percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)</u>

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the School recognized pension expense of \$168,803. In addition, the School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Description	Deferred Outflows of Resources		Inf	eferred lows of sources
Differences between expected and				
actual experience	\$	40,278	\$	421
Change in assumptions		174,416		-
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Pension Plan investments		-		37,570
Changes in proportion and differences between School Pension Plan contributions and proportionate share of contributions		51,040		10,715
School Pension Plan contributions subsequent to the measurement date		59,776		, _
subsequent to the measurement date	\$	325,510	\$	48,706

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)</u>

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling \$59,776 resulting from School contributions to the Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30:		 Amount
	2020	\$ 66,632
	2021	30,311
	2022	56,541
	2023	38,127
	2024	11,177
	Thereafter	 45,132
		\$ 247,920

#### 4. Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumption. Applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation	2.6%
Salary increases	3.25%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return	7.20%, net of pension plan investment Expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 4. Actuarial assumptions (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy's description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption for the based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

			Compound	
		Annual	Annual	
	Target	Arithmetic	(Geometric)	Standard
Asset Class	Allocation (1)	Return	Return	Deviation
Cash	1.0%	3.3%	3.3%	1.2%
Fixed income	18.0%	4.1%	4.1%	3.5%
Global equity	54.0%	8.0%	6.8%	16.5%
Real estate (property)	10.0%	6.7%	6.1%	11.7%
Private equity	11.0%	11.2%	8.4%	25.8%
Strategic investments	6.0%	5.9%	5.7%	6.7%
	100%			
Assumed Inflation - Mean			2.6%	1.7%

#### 5. <u>Discount rate</u>

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

#### NOTE F – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING (continued)

#### Florida Retirement System (continued)

#### 6. Sensitivity of net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following represents the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.90%) or one percentage point higher (7.90%) than the current rate:

		Current	
	1% Decrease	Discount	1% Increase
	(5.90%)	Rate (6.90%)	(7.90%)
School's proportionate share of			
the net pension liability	\$ 1,173,900	\$ 679,078	\$ 265,818

#### 7. Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FRD Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

#### 8. Payables to the pension plan

At June 30, 2020, the School reported zero payable for outstanding contributions to the Pension Plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS)

#### 1. Plan description

The HIS plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established under Section 112.363, Florida Statues, and may be amended by the Florida legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

#### 1. Plan description (continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment of \$5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a minimum HIS payment of \$30 and a maximum HIS payment of \$150 per month. To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree under a State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.

#### 2. Funding policy

The HIS plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the HIS contribution for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 was 1.66%. The School contributed 100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.

The School's contributions to the HIS Plan totaled \$16,355 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

### 3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions</u>

At June 30, 2020, the School reported a liability of \$345,245 for its proportionate share of the HIS plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. The School's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the School's 2018-2019 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2017-2018 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2019, the School's proportionate share was 0.003085574 percent, which was an decrease of (.61) percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

### 3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)</u>

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the School recognized pension expense of \$34,673. In addition, the School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows of		Outflows of Inflows	
Description	Re	esources	Re	sources
Differences between expected and				
actual experience	\$	4,193	\$	423
Change in assumptions		39,976		28,218
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Pension Plan investments		223		_
Changes in proportion and differences between School Pension Plan contributions and proportionate share of contributions		44,405		9,203
School Pension Plan contributions		44,403		3,203
subsequent to the measurement date		16,355		
	\$	105,152	\$	37,844

The deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS plan, totaling \$16,355 resulting from School contributions to the HIS plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Fiscal Year Ending

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

### 3. <u>Pension, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred</u> inflows of resources related to pensions (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

June 30:		 mount
	2020	\$ 14,907
	2021	13,567
	2022	13,477
	2023	9,028
	2024	6,114

2,054 59.147

Thereafter

#### 4. Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement.

Inflation 2.6%
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation

Municipal bond rate 3.87%

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

#### NOTE G – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS COST-SHARING SUBSIDY (continued)

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) (continued)

#### 5. <u>Discount rate</u>

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.50%. In general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.

#### 6. Sensitivity of net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following represents the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the School's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.50%) or one percentage point higher (4.50%) than the current rate:

	Current						
	Decrease (2.50%)	_	Discount te (3.50%)	1% Increase (4.50%)			
School's proportionate share of	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>				<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		
the net pension liability	\$ 394,115	\$	345,245	\$	304,542		

#### 7. Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information regarding the HIS plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

#### 8. Payables to the pension plan

At June 30, 2020, the School reported zero for outstanding contributions to the HIS plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

#### **NOTE H – RELATED PARTY**

#### 1. Management company

The management company provides financial, human resource, and administration services based on a contractual arrangement with the School. The management company manages the finances and operations and makes the final determinations regarding policies and contracts (See E-2). Total management fees charged to operations for the year ended June 30, 2020 are \$278,219.

#### 2. Shared operating expenses

The School shares IT services with a school operated by the same management company. During the year, the School was reimbursed in for these expenses in the amount of \$10.646.

The School also provides educational services under a contract with the Department of Juvenile Justice ("DJJ") Residential Community Facility in DeFuniak Springs, Florida. Under this contract, the School provides educational personnel and their salaries directly on behalf of the DJJ school which is operated by the same management company. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the School incurred expense on behalf of the DJJ School of \$280,346 and no outstanding receivable at June 30, 2020.

#### **NOTE I – RISK MANAGEMENT**

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the School carries commercial insurance. Under the policy for property insurance, the School's liability is \$1,000 per occurrence. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage during fiscal year 2020. Settled claims resulting for the risks described above have not exceeded the insurance coverage for each of the prior three years.

#### **NOTE J – NONEXCHANGE FINANCIAL GUARANTEES**

On May 21. 2020, the School received loan proceeds in the amount of approximately \$224,709 under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans and accrued interest are guaranteed forgivable by the Small Business Administration (SBA) after eight weeks of utilization as long as the School uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces salaries during the eight-week period.

#### **NOTE K – NONEXCHANGE FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)**

Any unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months. At this time, the School intends the proceeds received will be used for eligible purposes consistent with described conditions and believes it is more likely than not that the SBA will grant the forgiveness in full in accord with the guarantee.

The liability recognized for the non-exchange financial guarantee by the School at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

#### NOTE L – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School has evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2020, the date which the financial statements were available for issuance; and has determined that no material events occurred that would require additional disclosure in the financial statements except as follows:

On March 9, 2020, the Governor of the State of Florida declared a state of emergency in response to the global Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic. In the weeks following the declaration, precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus had been ordered. These measures including the closing of schools and requiring Florida residents to stay home unless they are leaving for essential functions. Over the following weeks, a step process was used by the Florida economy to slowly reopened and on July 6, 2020, the State of Florida Department of Education, under the directions of the Governor, announced the reopening of the School related to 2020-21 Florida's Optional Innovative Reopening Plan.

Under this plan, the School is to provide students with three options to return to School. The first option is the students return to the brick and mortar building 5 days a week, the second option for students is a Walton Virtual School which allows the student to enroll in a separate virtual school, and third, Innovative Learning Digital Academy which is district learning from home with enrollment in the student's current school; synchronous interaction with an instructor and peers five days a week.

The School has implemented these change to the 2020-21 School year and is expecting a minor impact on the School related to these changes due to fact the School has operated on a blended model with implementation and adjustment being minor. On the other hand, enrollment at the School might have a minor impact related to the student referrals it receives from the School District. The School is estimating a potential decline in referral revenues provided by the district between 10% to 11% related to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

#### NOTE L – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

In addition to mandated operational changes by the State, the School received Paycheck Protection Program Funds provided under the CARES act to continue to pay teachers over closure weeks of the School in March. The School has allocated these funds to used only related to payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its payroll levels over the eight-week coverage period in accordance with the restriction of the loan forgiveness. As of August 31, 2020, the School has used all monies related to these requirements and is applying for forgiveness of the loan closer by the end of the 2020 year per the bank's instructions. The School believes it is more likely than not that it will receive forgiveness of the loan and has met the forgiveness requirements.

The future impact of COVID-19 pandemic may possible affect future operating costs and revenues in the event of resurgence of cases and potential shut downs by the State or City.

On July, 7 2020, the School has renewed for five years by mutual agreement between the School and the charter of the School. The charter is effective until June 30, 2025.

**REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION** 

# Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY For the year ended June 30, 2020

#### FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

				School's					
				proportionate					
				share of the net					
		9	School's			pension liability	Plan fiduciary		
	School's	pro	portionate			(asset) as a	net position as a		
	proportion of	shar	e of the net			percentage of its	percentage of		
	the net pension	pens	sion liability	School's covered-		covered-	the total pension		
	liability (asset)		(asset)	emp	loyee payroll	employee payroll	liability		
2019	0.001971851%	\$	679,078	\$	1,001,033	67.84%	82.61%		
2018	0.001909773%	\$	575,234	\$	804,384	71.51%	84.26%		
2017	0.001967710%	\$	582,035	\$	1,040,894	55.92%	83.89%		
2016	0.001704266%	\$	430,329	\$ 1,008,902		42.65%	84.88%		
2015	0.001350565%	\$	174,444	\$	853,233	20.45%	92.00%		
2014	0.001347008%	\$	82,187	\$	676,979	12.14%	96.09%		

#### **HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY**

				School's					
				proportionate					
				share of the net					
		S	chool's			pension liability	Plan fiduciary		
	School's	pro	proportionate		(asset) as a	net position as a			
	proportion of	share	e of the net			percentage of its	percentage of		
	the net pension	pens	ion liability	Scho	ol's covered-	covered-	the total pension		
	liability (asset)		(asset)	employee payroll		employee payroll	liability		
2019	0.003085574%	\$	345,245	\$	1,001,033	34.49%	2.63%		
2018	0.003104449%	\$	328,578	\$	804,384	40.85%	2.15%		
2017	0.003157559%	\$	337,621	\$	1,040,894	32.44%	1.64%		
2016	0.002763909%	\$	322,122	\$ 1,008,902		31.93%	0.97%		
2015	0.002241697%	\$	228,618	\$	853,233	26.79%	0.50%		
2014	0.002245976%	\$	210,004	\$	676,979	31.02%	0.99%		

<sup>\*</sup> The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 06/30.

See notes to required supplemental information.

# Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY For the year ended June 30, 2020

#### FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

				School's					
				proportionate					
						share of the net			
		9	School's			pension liability	Plan fiduciary		
	School's	pro	portionate			(asset) as a	net position as a		
	proportion of	shar	e of the net			percentage of its	percentage of		
	the net pension	pens	ion liability	School's covered-		covered-	the total pension		
	liability (asset)	(asset)		employee payroll		employee payroll	liability		
2019	0.001971851%	\$	679,078	\$	1,001,033	67.84%	82.61%		
2018	0.001909773%	\$	575,234	\$	804,384	71.51%	84.26%		
2017	0.001967710%	\$	582,035	\$	1,040,894	55.92%	83.89%		
2016	0.001704266%	\$	430,329	\$	1,008,902	42.65%	84.88%		
2015	0.001350565%	\$	174,444	\$	853,233	20.45%	92.00%		
2014	0.001347008%	\$	82,187	\$	676,979	12.14%	96.09%		

#### **HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY**

				School's					
				proportionate					
						share of the net			
		9	School's			pension liability	Plan fiduciary		
	School's	pro	portionate			(asset) as a	net position as a		
	proportion of	share	e of the net			percentage of its	percentage of		
	the net pension	pens	ion liability	School's covered-		covered-	the total pension		
	liability (asset)		(asset)	empl	oyee payroll	employee payroll	liability		
2019	0.003085574%	\$	345,245	\$	1,001,033	34.49%	2.63%		
2018	0.003104449%	\$	328,578	\$	804,384	40.85%	2.15%		
2017	0.003157559%	\$	337,621	\$	1,040,894	32.44%	1.64%		
2016	0.002763909%	\$	322,122	\$	1,008,902	31.93%	0.97%		
2015	0.002241697%	\$	228,618	\$	853,233	26.79%	0.50%		
2014	0.002245976%	\$	210,004	\$	676,979	31.02%	0.99%		

<sup>\*</sup>The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.

See notes to required supplemental information.

# Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND For the year ended June 30, 2020

	Budgeted	Amounts		
Revenues	Original	Final	Actual	Variance with Final Budget
FEFP	\$ 1,322,263	\$ 1,237,401	\$ 1,238,657	\$ 1,256
Lead teacher funds	2,928	2,928	3,154	226
Referral Billing	100,000	100,000	78,163	(21,837)
Reading allocation	8,316	-	-	-
Mental health assistance	5,470	-	-	-
Best and brightest award	-	-	17,209	17,209
Saftey and security funds	-	-	3,073	3,073
Digital instruction	1,600	-	-	-
Interest	-	-	139	139
Uniforms	40.500	10 500	1,404	1,404
Donations Miscellaneous	10,500 2,000	10,500 2,000	7,335 18	(3,165) (1,982)
E-Rate	10,250	10,250	11,061	811
Total revenues	1,463,327	1,363,079	1,360,213	(2,866)
Expenditures				
Salaries	681,826	670,000	649,130	20,870
Retirement	60,000	56,000	57,057	(1,057)
Social Security	53,000 110,926	52,000 96,500	51,810 89,976	190 6,524
Group Insurance	7,500	7,510		1,387
Worker's Comp Unemployment compensation	1,500	1,500	6,123 161	1,339
Management fee	278,219	278,219	278,219	1,559
Audit/Accounting	8,000	8,000	7,000	1,000
Computer services	15,000	15,000	9,873	5,127
SRO	31,475	31,475	26,559	4,916
Mental health assistance	9,000	-	-	-
Curriculum/Staff Development	1,000	-	32	(32)
Professional services - other	500	-	45	(45)
Insurance	12,500	12,500	13,247	(747)
Travel	6,200	6,000	2,796	3,204
Vehicle/Maint	650	650	409	241
Computer repair	-	-	450	(450)
Inspections/Fire Ext	650	650	125	525
Lease-Copier	4,200	4,200	4,787	(587)
Rental-misc	3,000	3,000	4,211	(1,211)
Postage	2,000	2,000	923	1,077
Radio Internet	-	-	(106) 923	106 (923)
Telephone	20,500	20,500	19,236	1,264
Water/Sewer	4,800	4,800	5,845	(1,045)
Garbage	2,650	2,650	2,603	47
Printing-Advertising	1,000	1,000	203	797
Printing	2,600	2,600	-	2,600
Pest Control	1,800	1,800	1,235	565
Security Monitoring	500	500	540	(40)
Lawn service	4,050	6,695	6,270	425
Misc. Non-prof.Svc	6,100	7,200	7,131	69
Elect/Gas	35,000	35,000	34,191	809
Gas/Vehicles	500	500	204	296
Uniforms	-	-	882	(882)
Supplies	55,000	35,000	30,251	4,749
Instructional Material Lunches	14,000 400	12,500 400	15,369	(2,869) 400
Equipment	2,500	3,500	- 3,555	(55)
Computer Equipment	1,600	3,300	3,333	(33)
Software	10,000	_	366	(366)
Fees/Miscellaneous	4,000	4,000	2,773	1,227
Auto tags & fess	-	-	16	(16)
Substitutes/Temporary	7,500	7,500	18,060	(10,560)
Total expenditures	1,461,646	1,391,349	1,352,480	38,869
Net change in fund balance	1,681	(28,270)	7,733	36,003
Fund balance at July 1, 2019	194,848	194,848	194,848	
Fund balance at June 30, 2020	\$ 196,529	\$ 166,578	\$ 202,581	\$ 36,003

# Walton Academy, Inc. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL – CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND For the year ended June 30, 2020

	<b>Budgeted Amounts</b>							
	Original		Final		Actual		Variance with Final Budget	
Revenues	<u></u>				'			_
Charter school capital outlay	\$	107,782	\$	99,255	\$	100,915	\$	1,660
Expenditures		_		_				_
Salaries		14,000		10,575		8,316		2,259
Retirement		1,156		895		704		191
Social security		1,071		810		636		174
Unemployment compensation		150		150		3		147
Insurance		7,189		8,678		8,678		-
Repairs/Maint		25,000		25,000		11,590		13,410
Lease-Facility		28,200		28,200		28,230		(30)
Supplies		1,000		-		-		-
Computer equipment		-		10,000		-		10,000
Computer equipment non-capital		-		1,600		-		1,600
Improvements other than Buildings		8,000		1,500		1,480		20
Remodeling and renovation		20,000		25,000		21,871		3,129
Software		28,500		28,500		28,498		2
Total expenditures		134,266		140,908		110,006		30,902
Net change in fund balance		(26,484)		(41,653)		(9,091)		32,562
Fund balance at July 1, 2019		152,092		152,092		152,092		
Fund balance at June 30, 2020	\$	125,608	\$	110,439	\$	143,001	\$	32,562

### Walton Academy, Inc. NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION June 30, 2020

#### NOTE A – SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

#### 1. Ten-year trend

GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is completed, the School is presenting information for only those years for which information is available for the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) plans.

#### 2. Fiduciary net position

The FRS and HIS plans' fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability is published in the FRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (See FRS CAFR information).

#### **NOTE B – SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS**

#### Ten-year trend

GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is completed, the School is presenting information for only those years for which information is available for the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) plans.

#### **NOTE C – BUDGETARY INFORMATION**

The School's annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual budgets are adopted for the general and capital outlay funds and may be amended by the School's Board of Directors (the "Board"). The budgets presented for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, have been amended according to Board Procedures.

Budgets are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is the object level.

**COMPLIANCE INFORMATION** 



## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors Walton Academy, Inc. DeFuniak Springs, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Walton Academy, Inc. (the "School"), a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2020.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the School's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

September 14, 2020

McDoncyh (PA Solutions, PA

Melbourne, Florida

#### MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Board of Directors Walton Academy, Inc. DeFuniak Springs, Florida

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the financial statements of Walton Academy, Inc. (the "School"), a component unit of the Walton County School District, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated September 14, 2020.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the Auditor General.

#### **Other Reports and Schedules**

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*. Disclosures in that report, which are dated September 14, 2020, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

#### **Prior Audit Findings**

Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. In connection with our audit, the School did not have prior year findings.

#### Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires the name or official title of the entity and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed in this management letter. The official title and the school code assigned by the Department of Education of the entity is Walton Academy, Inc.; 1111.

#### **Financial Condition and Management**

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. And 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate whether or not the School has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the School did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the School. It is management's responsibility to monitor the School's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Audit General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

#### Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7 and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the School maintains on its Web site the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that the School maintained on its Web site the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

#### **Additional Matters**

Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

#### **Purpose of this Letter**

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, Board of Directors, applicable School's management, others within the School, and the Walton County School District, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

September 14, 2020

McDoncyh (PA Solutions, PA

Melbourne, Florida

#### MANAGEMENT FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, there were no audit findings, recommendations, or responses.